TOWN OF WAYNESVILLE

Planning B Oard Development Services
Director
9 South Main Street Elizabeth Teague

Waynesville, NC 28786
Phone (828) 456-8647 » Fax (828) 452-1492
www.waynesvillenc.gov

Planning Board Members
Susan Teas Smith (Chairman)
Ginger Hain (Vice Chair)
Stuart Bass

R. Michael Blackburn
Tommy Thomas
Barbara Thomas

Regular Meeting of the Planning Board

Peggy Hannah Town Hall, 9 South Main Street, Waynesville, NC 28786
o Sl Monday, July 17,2023, 5:30 PM

A. CALL TO ORDER

1. Welcome/Calendar/Announcements
e Summary of Town Council Actions on Planning Board recommendations

2. Approval of Minutes as presented (or amended):
e June 19, 2023 Regular Meeting
B. BUSINESS
1. Public hearing on a staff-initiated text amendment to add “Event Space” as a stand-alone use
to the Land Development Standards: definition and supplemental standards (LDS Sections

2.5.3,3.3.5, and 17.3).

2. Public hearing on a staff-initiated text amendment to correct definition of “Freight
Hauling/Truck Terminals” (LDS Section 17.3).

3. Public hearing on a board-initiated text amendment to create a Railroad Overlay District
including purpose, standards, uses (LDS Sections 2.5.3 and 2.6.2).
4. Discussion on “crypto-mining” and possibility of a future text amendment.

C. PUBLIC COMMENT/CALL ON THE AUDIENCE

D. ADJOURN

www.waynesvillenc.gov
This institution is an equal opportunity provider



Waynesville Town Council Votes on the Planning Board Items 2022-2023

March 22, 2022;

e Stormwater Ordinance text amendment, Section 12.5 of the L.DS to align the Town’s local
ordinance with the Phase Il NCDEQ Stormwater Model Ordinance for North Carolina.

Motion of Consistency with the 2035 Plan and Motion to adopt the text amendment as presented passed
unanimously. .

o LDS text amendments regarding 160D clarifications and definitions, and other minor
amendments, Ordinance cleanup.

Motion of Consistency with the 2035 Plan and Motion to adopt the text amendment as presented passed
unanimousiy. :

May 10, 2022:

e Public Hearing to consider text amendments on revisions to LDS Section 6.10: Transportation
Impact Analysis (TTA): lower the TIA threshold to 500 trips per day to require a study, This
would generally apply to any new residential development as follows:

50 single-family homes

70 apartments / townhomes

100 room hotels

30,000 square foot office building
20,000 square foot shopping center

O 0 0 00

Motion of Consistency with the 2035 Plan and Motion to adopt the text amendment as presented passed
unanimousiy.

e ‘Text amendment to Chapter 7 of the LDS, Civic Space: increase the % required based on the
size of the project, provide additional options, such as preserve, dog park, and indoor community
facility.

Motion of Consistency with the 2035 Plan and Motion to adopt the text amendment as presented passed
unanimously.

June 28, 2022

o Text amendment request initiated by the Planning Board to implement buffer requircments and
~ quasi-judicial review procedures on major subdivisions which create 31 or more lots.

A motion was made by Alderman Anthony Sutton, seconded by Chuck Dickson to table the zoning text
amendment request initiated by the Planning Board to implement buffer requirements and quasi-judicial
review procedures on major subdivisions which create 31 or more lots for more discussion with the
Planning Board. (Chuck Dickson, aye), (Julia Freeman, aye), (Jon Feichter, aye), (Anthony Sutton, aye)
and (Mayor Gary Caldwell, aye,) The motion passed unanimousiy.




Specifically, the Board of Aldermen did not express any interest in going back to quasi-judicial
procedures which can be legally controversial. The text amendment on buffers without quasi-judicial
procedures was presented to the board again on December 13, 2022 (see below).

July 26, 2022:

s Zoning map amendment request to change the zoning of property located at 134 Belle Meade
Drive, PIN 8605-81-6159, from Hazelwood Urban Residential (H-UR) to Hazelwood Business
District (H-BD).

A motion was made by Alderman Anthony Sutton, seconded by Alderman Jon Feichiter, to outright reject
the rezoning of the property at 134 Belle Meade to Hazelwood Business District. The motion carried
unanimousiy.

August 9, 2022

*  Text amendment to Section 9.8 of the LDS, Driveway Standards: width and length requirenents
based on the number of units, fire access safety, definition of joint and shared driveways, apron
specs, materials. -

Motion of Cénsi.‘s‘tency with the 2035 Plan and Motion to adopt the text amendment as presented passed
unanimously.

November 8, 2022

e Text amendment related to cottages and conservation subdivision designs Sections 2.5.3, 15.9,
17.3, and 17.4 of the LDS.

Motion of Consistency with the 2035 Plan and Motion io adopt the text amendment as presented passed
unanimously.

¢ Text amendments to LDS Chapter 6 pertaining to Roadway Infrastructure; road classifications,
design, pedestrian facilities, sidewalks, parking spaces on the streets, etc.

Motion of Consistency with the 2035 Plan and Motion to adopt the text amendment as presented passed
unanimousiy.

December 13, 2022;

e Text amendment related to Section 8.4 Buffer Yards of the I.DS to require a Type B Buffer for
- large developments >30 units.

Motion of Consistency with the 2035 Plan and Motion to adopt the text amendment as presented passed
unanimousiy, ' :




e Map Amendment (Rezoning) Request from Hazelwood Urban Residential (H-UR) to
Hazelwood Urban Residential Mixed-Use Overlay-2 (H-UR-MX-0-2} District for Five (5)
Properties off South Main Street:

1) .38-acre property at 1434 S. Main St. (PIN 8605-91-5018),

2} .28-acre property at 1458 S. Main St. (PIN 8605-90-3984),

3) .23-acre property at 1484 S. Main St. (PIN 8605-90-3920),

4) .14-acre unaddressed property off S. Main St. (PIN 8605-90-2966),
5) .24-acre property at 24 Belle Meade Dr., (PIN 8605-90-2836).

Motion of Conszstency with the 2035 Plan and Motion o adopt the map amendment as presented passed
unanimously,

o Text amendment to LDS Sectlon 12.3, the Flood Damage Preventlon Ordinance, to align the
LDS with the State model ordinance.

Motion of Consistency with the 2035 Plan and Motion to adopt the text amendment as presented passed
unanimousiy. : .

» Text amendments related to Chapter 160D general additions and revisions to multiple sections
of the I.DS: substantial modifications -of site plans, exemptions to driveway standards when
connecting to private roads, hydroplaning protections in the stormwater ordinance,

Motion of Consistency wu‘h the 2035 Plan and Motion to adopt the text amendment as presented passed
unanimously,

February 14, 2023;

e Map Amendment for the property located at 465 Boyd Avenue (PIN 8605-96-8882) to create a
Hazelwood Urban Residential MXO-3 District.

Motion of Consistency with the 2035 Plan and Motion to adopt the map amendment as presented passed
URANIMousiy.

e Text Amendment to the LDS Section 17.3, Use Type Definitions, Personal Services to include
tattoo parlors.

Motion of Consistency with the 2035 Plan and Motion to adopt the text amendment as presented passed
unanimously.

May 23, 2023:

. Sfor_mwater Ordinance text amendment, Section 12,5 of the LDS: design standards and safety
measures for stormwater control measures with steep slopes and tall banks (such as ponds).

Motion of Consistency with the 2035 Plan and Motion to adopt the text amendment as presented passed
unanimousiy, : .




e Map Amendment for the property located at 237 Ratcliff Cove Road (PIN 8626-00-9246).

A motion was made by Councilmember Anthony Sutton, seconded by Councilmember Julia Freeman, to
find the request is consistent with the 2035 Comprehensive Plan in that it creates opportunities for a
sustainable economy, strengthens Waynesville’s current and future workforce through education and
training and encourages creatively designed, mixed-use, walkable centers and commercials districts that
appeal to residents and visitors. The motion passed unanimously.

A motion was made by Councilmember Anthony Sutton, seconded by Councilmember Chuck Dickson to
rezone the property described as 237 Ratcliff Cove Road (PIN 8626-00-9246) from the Raccoon Creck
Neighborhood Residential District to the Raccoon Creek Neighborhood Residential District Mixed-Use
Overlay-2, to be enacted 10 days after the Haywood County School Board achieves ownership of the
property, and to limit the additional uses extended by the overlay to Government Services, and in so
doing amending the Comprehensive Plan, Future Land Use Map to re-designate this property as
“Community Facilities " in its land use typology and that it continues to promote smart growth principles
in land use planning and zoning, and encourages infill, mixed-use, and context-sensitive development.
The motion passed unanimously.

June 27, 2023:

e Text amendment to the LDS Section 5.10.2, Mixed-Use/Commercial Building Design
Guidelines, Facade Materials.

The original text amendment was simply to add “metal panels and siding” to the list of permitted
materials. The Town Council modified it by adding the following provisions:

Metal panels and siding may be used as a facade material on commercial buildings with the following
restrictions:

1. Metal panels and siding may be used as a facade material only on commercial buildings located

within Neighborhood Center, Business, and Regional Center Districis.

Such metal panels and siding must consist of architectural-grade metal without a high-gloss

finish. Standing seam metal panels may not be used as a fa¢ade material,

3. The use of metal panels and siding as a fagade material within a National Register Historic
District or Local Historic District must be approved by the Historic Preservation Commission
with the issuance of a Certificate of Appropriateness.

bo

The amendment passed with these modifications. Both motions (consistency statement and the vote on
the amendment) were carried unanimously.

You can access previous minutes and agendas by visiting the following
site: http://www.egovlink.com/waynesville/.




Page 1 of 3

TOWN OF WAYNESVILLE
Planning Board

WAYNESVILLE

Progress with Vision
9 South Main Street Suite 110
Waynesville, NC 28786

Phone (828) 456-8647  Fax (828) 452-1492

Susan Teas Smith (Chairman) Development Services
Ginger Hain (Vice) Director
Stuart Bass Elizabeth Teague

John Baus

Michael Blackburn MINUTES OF THE TOWN OF WAYNESVILLE PLANNING BOARD

::an:\;i:;::;?m Regular Scheduled Meeting
Tommy Thomas Town Hall — 9 South Main St., Waynesvﬂle, NC 28786
Barbars Thoms Monday June 19, 2023, 5:30pm

THE WAYNESVILLE PLANNING BOARD held a Regular Scheduled Meeting June 19“‘, 2023,
at 5:30 p.m. in the board room of the Town Hall, 9 South Main Street, Waynesville, NC. 28786.

A. CALL TO ORDER

1. Welcome/Calendar/ Announcements

The following members were present
Ginger Hain (Vice Chairman)
Stuart Bass
Jan Grossman
Barbara Thomas
Tommy Thomas
Peggy Hannah

The following board member were absent:
Susan Teas Smith (Chairman)
Michael Blackburn
John Baus

The following staff members were present:
Elizabeth Teague, Development Services Director
Olga Grooman, Land Use Administrator
Esther Coulter, Administrative Assistant

Vice Chairman Ginger Hain called the meeting to order at 5:30pm. Mrs. Hain welcomed everyone
and asked if there were any announcements. Development Services Director Elizabeth Teague
announced to the board that in the agenda packet after the minutes staff will post a summary of the
results of the Planning Board’s recommendations to Town Council for approval.

Planning Board Minutes
June 19, 2023



Page 2 of 3

A motion was made by Board Member Jan Grossman, seconded by Board Member Tommy
Thomas, to approve the minutes for the May 15", 2023, meeting as presented or amended. The
motion passed by 5 votes and 1 abstained for being absent.

B. BUSINESS

1. Report from Railroad Corridor Committee and Discussion of Railroad Overlay District
(RR-OVand Uses, Sections 2.5.3 and 2.6 of the Land Development Standards (LDS).

Land Use Administrator, Olga Grooman stated the Railroad €ommittee was formed in January
2023 to study the land use opportunities for urban revitalj n. The Committee consisted of

business owners, community representatives, planning b embers and staff.

flexibility in permitted uses and redevelopme
smaller areas of the commercial districts.

yod Soap Company, and other stores. The
1d west with some modifications. This overlay
-evel district but is less dense. The proposed district will

Mrs. Grooman went over the proposed Text Amendment for section 2.6.3 along with the proposed
permitted uses in each underlying districts (LDS 2.5.3) Table of Permitted Uses. Ms. Grooman
explained that the overlay areas would add certain uses within those districts, but would not take
away existing permitted uses. Mrs. Teague clarified which district allowed or didn’t allow certain
permitted uses like mobile homes and manufactured housing. There was additional discussion that
Special Use Permits would remain as Special Use Permits. Mrs. Grooman thanked everyone and
stated the amendment will come back to them for the July 17, 2023, meeting,

Pléhning Board M.inui-;éé o
June 19t 2023



Page 3 of 3

2. Discussion of staff-initiated definition of Event Space and Freight Hauling, LDS Section
17.3,

Olga Grooman stated that as part of the discussion with the railroad overlay committee, there was
discussion about event spaces. These are commercial spaces designed and used specifically for
special events such as meetings, parties or receptions. This would be distinct from events allowed
as customary uses for Inns and Bed and Breakfasts. Staff suggest that this be allowed in the
Railroad Overlay District via a Special Use Permit.

sectlon 3.5 Supplemental Use Standards to renumber
Supplemental standards suggested are to provide screenis

sther Coulter Administrative Assistant

Planhing Board Minutes
June 19%, 2023



TOWN OF WAYNESVILLE

Development Services Department

b et PO Box 100

B 9 South Main Street
Waynesville, NC 28786

Phone (828) 456-8647 * Fax (828) 452-1492
www.waynesvillenc.gov

AYNESVILLE

Progress with Vision

FOR PUBLICATION IN THE MOUNTAINEER: June 28 and July 5 Wednesday Editions
Date: June 20, 2023
Contact: Olga Grooman, (828) 356-1172

Notice of Public Hearings
Town of Waynesville Planning Board

The Town of Waynesville Planning Board will hold three (3) public hearings on July 17, 2023 at 5:30 pm,
in the Town Hall Board Room, located at 9 South Main Street, Waynesville, NC, to consider three (3) text
amendments:

1. Addition of an “Event Space” as a stand-alone use to the Land Development Standards (LDS):
definition and supplemental standards.

2. Creation of a Railroad Overlay District: purpose, standards, uses.
3. Definition of “Freight Hauling/Truck Terminals.”

For more information contact the Development Services Department at: (828) 356-1172, email:
ogrooman@waynesvillenc.gov , mail: 9 South Main Street, Suite 110, Waynesville, NC 28786.




Planning Board Staff Report

Subject: Addition of “Event Space” use to the Land Development Standards (LDS})
Ordinance Section: Sections 2.5.3, 3.5, and 17.3 of the LDS

Applicant: Railroad Subcommittee initiated text amendment

Presenter: Olga Grooman, Land Use Administrator, Development Services

Meeting Date: July 17, 2023

Background

In discussions related to econmomic opportunities and development along the railroad corridor, the
subcommittee identified a gap in our zoning ordinances. An “event space” is not defined as a stand-alone
use, and the Development Services Department has been receiving inquiries about converting some
properties into wedding venues or as spaces for rental for events such as parties or meetings.

Per LDS Section 2.5.2 B. Uses Not Listed: “Should the Administrator determine that a materially similar
use does not exist, this Chapter may be amended to establish a specific listing for the use in question.” The
attached text amendment comes out of the RR subcommittee discussions and provides a proposed definition
of an “event space™ and recommends associated regulations.

Staff presented the draft text amendment to the Planning Board and received the the feedback at the June
19, 2023 Plaming Board meeting. The Board wants to allow “event spaces” as a Special Use Permit only
in the Railroad Qverlay District for now. Although “event spaces” would be generally compatible with
other civic, retail, cultural, and entertainment uses, the Board wants to mitigate any potential impacts on
the surrounding areas by carefully reviewing each application for such use. In the future, property ownets
may request to include “event spaces” in other districts in the Table of Permitted Uses (LDS 2.5.3) via the
text amendment procedure that would be heard by both the Planning Board and Town Council.

Events, especially large ones, may create significant impacts on the surrounding propetties by way of noise,
trash, parking, traffic, or other impacts. Therefore staff also proposes supplemental standards for “event
spaces” in Chapter 3 of the LDS.

Staff Recommended Text Changes:

Include the definition of “event space’ in section 17.3 of the LDS

¢ Create supplemental standards for this use in Chapter 3 of the LDS: parking, noise, trash, buffer
against residential areas, other permits

» “Event space” can be a primary or secondary use to the property. However, both uses must be
allowed in the underlying zoning district.

Staff submits the proposed changes in red on the attached draft ordinance for discussion.

Consistency with the 2035 Comprehensive Land Use Plan

Staff submits that the proposed text amendments to the LDS are consistent with the 2035 Comp Plan goals:



)

Goal 1: Continue to promote smart growth principles in land use planning and zoning.
+ Encourage in-fill, mixed use, and context-sensitive development,

Goal §: Create Opportunities for a Sustainable Economy.
s Promote the growth of existing local businesses and Waynesville’s “maker economy.”
¢ Promote Waynesville’s downtown districts, inns, restaurants, and reputation as the
“Gateway to the Smokies.”

Attachments

1. Proposed Text Amendment
2. Consistency Statement Worksheet
3. Public Notices

Recommended Motions

1. Motion to find the recommended “Event Space” text amendment as attached (or amended) as
being consistent with the 2035 Land Use Plan and reasonable and in the public interest.

2. Motion to recommend the “Event Space” text amendment as attached (or as amended) to the
Town Council.



Lz

ORDINANCE NO.

AN ORDINANCE AMENDING THE TEXT
OF THE TOWN OF WAYNESVILLE LAND DEVELOPMENT STANDARDS

WHEREAS, the Town of Waynesville has the authority, pursuant to Article 7 of Chapter 160D
of the North Carolina General Statutes, to adopt land development regulations, clarify such regulations,
and may amend said regulations from time to time in the interest of the public health, safety, and welfare;
and

WHEREAS, the Town of Waynesville Land Development Standards (I.DS) do not have a
definition of an “event space” as a use; and

WHEREAS, the Town of Waynesville Planning Board has reviewed the proposed text
amendments to the LDS and recommends that they are consistent with the 2035 Comprehensive Plan and
that they are reasonable and in the public interest because:

e The Town of Waynesville will continue to “promote smart growth in land use planning
and zoning;” (Goal #1);
e The Town will Create Opportunities for a Sustainable Economy (Goal #5);

WHEREAS, the Planning Board has reviewed and recommends the proposed text amendments
for enactment by the Town Council; and

WHEREAS, the Town Council find this Ordinance to be consistent with the Town’s 2035
Comprehensive Plan and that it is reasonable and in the public interest to “make decisions about resources
and land use in accordance with North Carolina General Statutes.” and

WHEREAS, after notice duly given, a public hearing was held on July 17, 2023 at the regularly
scheduled meeting of the Waynesville Planning Board, and on at the regularly scheduled
meeting of the Waynesville Town Council;

NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT ORDAINED BY THE TOWN COUNCIL OF THE TOWN
OF WAYNESVILLE, MEETING IN REGULAR SESSION ON AND WITH A
MAJORITY OF THE BOARD MEMBERS VOTING IN THE AFFIRMATIVE, THE
FOLLOWING:

That the Land Development Standards be amended as follows (in red):



13

Event Space. An establishment that is available to the
conferences, parties, business meetings, banquets, social

3

general public for hosting weddings, receptions,
gatherings, or similar indoor or outdoor events.

Amend Section 3.5 Supplemental Use Standards- Commercial and renumber the subsequent
sections as follows:

3.5.5 Event Space.

A.

28

D.

G,

An “event space” may be a primary or secondary use of the property. In both cases, it must be
allowed in the underlying zoning district.

Screening. An outdoor area of an event space shall be buffered by a Type C bufter (LDS 8.4.2.C)
from any lot containing a church, a school, or any residential district (adjacent or across the street
/ private road).

Parking. LDS 9.2.1 standards apply. Vehicles attending/employed by an event cannot block the
streets, create traffic congestion or unsafe situations, or park in the public right-of-way or
undesignated areas.

Noise. All events must comply with the Town of Waynesville noise ordinances.

Trash. All events must contain their trash and comply with the Town of Waynesville trash pick-
up ordinances and schedules.

Other permits. All events mush be in compliance with all local, state, and federal regulations and
permits, including but not limited to ABC permit.

Off-Site Events. All events are limited to the property. If additional activities take place off
premises (such as parades, special events outside of your building, tent sales, or other similar
events), a temporary use permit must be obtained for each such event (LDS 15.6.2).

1. Amend Section 2.5.3 Table of Permitted Uses as follows:
Bedien 3 Dl e ‘ < acka Lpmey Neighborhood Residential (NR) Urban il (UR) Center (NC{  Business Districe (BD) Regianal Center (RC) Industrial
fi:18) Districts (RM) (€n
USETYPES CC-RL | ENRL | FCRI, | HT-B, | CP-RM | D.RM |HM.AM|SW.RM| AC-NR [ LL.NR | M5-NR | N.NR | P5.NR | PC.NR | RC.NR | S55.NR | WS.NR | EW.UR Mll HM-UR| NM.NC | PS.NC | RCNC| CBD | H.BD | SM-BD DJ-RC | HC.AC | RA-RC Ci
COMMERCIAL
{Adult Esablishment - - - - - Ps
|Aleahalic Beversgs Sales Store r r ? F 4 P r F P .
|Auta Fares Sales 1] B ] P .1 s o P P P
Bar'TavernNight Cub ] 21 i1 14 1] 143 141 151 5] i
Drrve-Thry Commercal s s s 2] ] 141 P : 4 F
Event Space : # i - -
|GavFuziing Sution PCPS e ] " il 41 ] 21 141 151 P
(Genersl Commercisl - Lexs than -
100,000 5 L PL L .8 14 r P P P r
;?: i““‘m"u"“" pen s | sop | s | s | sep | sup | sur | sue | s | s
|neighbarnood Commerdal fas
jdefinzd in szction 17.30 adopred 3 n L FL 18 L n E.8
14/2015)
INeishbarhood Resmrursnt fas
|defined n raction 1730 sdopted R’ n L 18 M 18 [, 8 28
152015
2. Amend Section 17.3 Definitions, Use Type as follows:




3.5.6 Gas/Fueling Station

357 é.eneral Commercial- Greater than 100,000 sq. ft
3.5.8 .(l).utside Storage

354 .\.f;ahicle and Heavy Equipment Sales/ Rental ...
3.5.10 .\./.ehicle Services- Minor Maintenance/Repair/Wash
3.5.11 ‘\.7;3hicle Services- Major Repair/Body Work

3.5.12 Video Gaming or Video Gaming Parlor

ADOPTED this Day of . 2023,

TOWN OF WAYNESVILLE

I. Gary Caldwell, Mayor
ATTEST:

Candace Poolton, Town Clerk

APPROVED AS TO FORM:

Martha Bradley, Town Attorney

(Y



1s°

WAYNESVILLE
g Mor :

Progress with Vision

To: Town of Waynesville Planning Board

From: Olga Grooman, Land Use Administrator

Date: July 17, 2023

Subject: Text Amendment Statement of Consistency

Description: Text amendment related to “Event Space,” Sections 2.5.3, 3.5, and 17.3 of the
Land Development Standards

Address: Town of Waynesville Planning Department (“Development Services
Department™)

The Planning Board hereby adopts and recommends to the Town Council the following statement(s):

D The zoning text amendment is approved and is consistent with the Town’s Comprehensive
Land Use Plan because:

The zoning text amendment and is reasonable and in the public interest because:

D The zoning text amendment is rejected because it is inconsistent with the Town’s
Comprehensive Land Plan and is not reasonable and in the public interest because

D In addition to approving this zoning amendment, this approval is also deemed an amendment to
the Town’s Comprehensive Land Use Plan. The change in conditions taken into account in
amending the zoning ordinance to meet the development needs of the community and why this
action is reasonable and in the public interest, are as follows:

Planning Board Member , made a motion, seconded by

The motion passed . (unanimously or vote results here)

Susan Teas Smith, Planning Board Chair Date Esther Coulter, Administrative Assistant Date



e

Planning Board Staff Report

Subject: Definition of “Freight Hauling/Truck Terminals” in the Land Development
Standards (LDS)

Ordinance Section: Section 17.3 of the LDS

Applicant: Staff initiated text amendment

Presenter; Olga Grooman, Land Use Administrator, Development Services

Meeting Date: July 17,2023

Background

The current definition of the “Freight Hauling/Truck Terminals” in the LDS is the same as the definition of
“Funeral Homes” in what appears to be a copy and pasting error from many years ago. However, the
footnote for the definition has a valid reference to the Land Based Classification Standards (LBCS), a
guidance document by the American Planning Association that classifies and defines various land uses,
Staff wishes to correct the mistake and replace the wrong definition with the intended one from the LBCS.
With this clarification, freight-hauling and truck terminals are proposed to be part of the Railroad corridor
overlay.

Staff Recommended Text Changes:
¢ Include the definition of “I'reight Hauling/Truck Terminals” in section 17.3 of the LDS

Staff submits the proposed changes in red on the attached draft ordinance for discussion.

Consistency with the 2035 Comprehensive Land Use Plan

Staff submits that the proposed text amendments to the LDS are consistent with the 2035 Comp Plan goals:

Goal 1: Continue to promote smart growth principles in land use planning and zoning.
o Encourage in-fill, mixed use, and context-sensitive development.

Goal 5: Create Opportunities for a Sustainable Economy.
e Promote the growth of existing local businesses and Waynesville’s

113

maker economy.”

Goal 6: Create an attractive, safe and multi-modal transportation system.
e Provide an intercomnected transportation network of roadways, greenways, freight mobility,
bicycle routes, and sidewalks that improves safety and strategic access for all users,

Attachments

1. Proposed Text Amendment
2. Consistency Statement Worksheet
3. Public Notices



+7

Recommended Motions

1. Motion to find the recommended “Freight Hauling/Truck Terminals” text amendment as attached
(or amended) as being consistent with the 2035 Land Use Plan and reasonable and in the public
interest.

2. Motion to recommend the “Freight Hauling/Truck Terminals” text amendment as attached (or as
amended) to the Town Council.



(8

ORDINANCE NO.

AN ORDINANCE AMENDING THE TEXT
OF THE TOWN OF WAYNESVILLE LAND DEVELOPMENT STANDARDS

WHEREAS, the Town of Waynesville has the authority, pursuant to Article 7 of Chapter 160D
of the North Carolina General Statutes, to adopt land development regulations, clarify such regulations,
and may amend said regulations from time to time in the interest of the public health, safety, and welfare;
and

WHEREAS, the definition of the “Freight Hauling/Truck Terminals” in the Town of
Waynesville Land Development Standards (LDS) is the same as the definition of “Funeral Homes” but
has a valid reference to a different definition in the Land Based Classification Standards (LBCS); and

WHEREAS, the Town of Waynesville Planning Board has reviewed the proposed text
amendment to the LDS and recommends that it is consistent with the 2035 Comprehensive Plan and that
it is reasonable and in the public interest because:

o The Town of Waynesville will continue to “promote smart growth in land use planning
and zoning;” (Goal #1);

¢ The Town will Create Opportunities for a Sustainable Economy (Goal #5);

e The Town will create an attractive, safe, and multi-modal transportation system. (Goal
#6)

WHEREAS, the Planning Board has reviewed and recommends the proposed text amendment
for enactment by the Town Council; and

WHEREAS, the Town Council find this Ordinance to be consistent with the Town’s 2035
Comprehensive Plan and that it is reasonable and in the public interest to “make decisions about resources
and land use in accordance with North Carolina General Statutes.” and

WHEREAS, after notice duly given, a public hearing was held on July 17, 2023 at the regularly
scheduled meeting of the Waynesville Planning Board, and on at the regularly scheduled
meeting of the Waynesville Town Council;

NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT ORDAINED BY THE TOWN COUNCIL OF THE TOWN
OF WAYNESVILLE, MEETING IN REGULAR SESSION ON AND WITH A
MAJORITY OF THE BOARD MEMBERS VOTING IN THE AFFIRMATIVE, THE
FOLLOWING:

That the Land Development Standards be amended as follows (in red):



1. Amend Section 17.3 Definitions, Use Type as follows:

Freight Hauling/Truck Terminals. Establishments in the truck and freight transportation category provide
over the-road transportation of cargo using motor vehicles, such as trucks and tractor trailers. These
establishments may handle a variety of commodities, involve local or long distance trucking, and require
specialized equipment due to the size, weight, shape, or other inherent characteristics of the cargo (LBCS
F4140).

ADOPTED this Day of . 2023.

TOWN OF WAYNESVILLE

J. Gary Caldwell, Mayor
ATTEST:

Candace Poolton, Town Clerk

APPROVED AS TO FORM:

Martha Bradley, Town Attorney



20

Progress with Vision

To: Town of Waynesville Planning Board

From: Olga Grooman, Land Use Administrator

Date: July 17, 2023

Subject: Text Amendment Statement of Consistency

Description: Text amendment- definition of “Freight Hauling/Truck Terminals,” section 17.3
of the Land Development Standards

Address: Town of Waynesville Planning Department (“Development Services

Department™)

The Planning Board hereby adopts and recommends to the Town Council the following statement(s):

D The zoning text amendment is approved and is consistent with the Town’s Comprehensive
Land Use Plan because:

The zoning text amendment and is reasonable and in the public interest because:

D The zoning text amendment is rejected because it is inconsistent with the Town’s
Comprehensive Land Plan and is not reasonable and in the public interest because

D In addition to approving this zoning amendment, this approval is also deemed an amendment to
the Town’s Comprehensive Land Use Plan. The change in conditions taken into account in
amending the zoning ordinance to meet the development needs of the community and why this
action is reasonable and in the public interest, are as follows:

Planning Board Member , made a motion, scconded by

The motion passed . (unanimously or vote results here)

Susan Teas Smith, Planning Board Chair Date Esther Coulter, Administrative Assistant Date



2t

Planning Board Staff Report

Subject: Creation of a Railroad Overlay District (RR-O) and Its Uses
Ordinance Section: Sections 2.5.3 and 2.6 of the Land Development Standards (LDS)
Applicant: Railroad Subcommittee initiated text amendment

Presenter: Olga Grooman, Land Use Administrator, Development Services
Meeting Date: July 17,2023

Background

The railway corridor that runs through the heart of Waynesville presents opportunities for urban
revitalization. This corridor crosses industrial, residential, business and mixed-use districts and touches
public rights of-ways, parks, and existing and potential greenways. Railway corridors can be the areas
where commercial, cultural, and residential areas safely coexist and promote economic and social vibrancy,
if existing zoning and land use policies are designed to encourage infill development and to promote a
variety of land uses.

Pursuant to the Comprehensive Plan Recommendations, the Planning Board assigned an ad hoc committee
to study the land use challenges and opportunities along the Waynesville railroad corridor. The group
consisted of local business owners, community representatives, Planning Board members, and
Development Services staff. Additionally, the staff had discussions with the leadership team of the Blue
Ridge Southern Railroad. Five months of the subcommittee’s work included research, study, and
discussions about potential uses along the corridor, economic opportunities, and gateways to the Town.
The Railroad Subcommittee had its final meeting on May 19, 2023. The Planning Board’s Railroad
Subcommittee work has been documented on the Town’s website at:

https://www.wavnesvillenc.gov/departments/development-services/rail-corridor-study

The staff presented the subcommittee’s work to the Planning Board and received additional feedback on
June 19, 2023. The recommendation is to establish a “railroad overlay,” or “RR-O” which would encompass
the existing zoning plus all types of residential uses, including manufacturing housing, and lodging.
Additionally it would allow specified commercial uses that would include freight-hauling, manufacturing,
as well as a newly created “event space.” The Special Use Permit requirement would apply to uses which
the Board feels have potential impacts that may need to be mitigated through conditions or site plan
requirements as part of a quasi-judicial proceeding.

Staff Recommended Text Changes:

A special Railroad Overlay District would promote a higher concentration of mixed-use and infill
development for property that is adjacent to or overlapping the railroad right-of-way corridor. The goal of
creating a railroad corridor overlay would be to create opportunities for revitalization of property along the
track.

The committee determined that the best areas of opportunity were within the Frog Level and Hazelwood
downtown areas. By starting where there is already a concentration of commercial and residential mixed-
use, the committee hopes that the overlay will provide flexible options for redevelopment in these areas,
and have identified a draft overlay district map to be called the Railroad Overlay District (RR-O). Once
established, the overlay could then be applied through a rezoning / map amendment process.



22

As an overlay, all other requirements of the underlying district would remain the same, such as setbacks,
height, density, existing permitted uses uses, etc. The ordinance would also:

s Add anarrative in LDS Section 2.6 describing the district’s purpose and allowed uses,
* Add a notation about the new overlay district in the Table of Permitted Uses (LDS 2.5.3).

Staff submits the attached ordinance for discussion with proposed changes in red,

Consistency with the 2035 Comprehensive Land Use Plan

Staff submits that the proposed text amendments to the LDS are consistent with the 2035 Comp Plan goals:

Goal 1: Continue to promote smart growth principles in land use planning and zoning,
e [Incourage in-fill, mixed use, and contexi-sensitive development.

¢  “Study/implement a railroad overlay district to encourage redevelopment along the railroad
corridor, especially in areas with access to existing/future greenway” (p. 67).

Goal 5: Create Opportunities for a Sustainable Economy.
e Promote the growth of existing local businesses and Waynesville’s
* Promote Waynesville’s downtown districts, inns, restaurants, and reputation as the “Gateway to
the Smokies.”
¢ “Review the LDS to create opportunities within the Town of Waynesville’s industrial areas and
along the railroad corridor” {(p. 70).

(13

maker economy.”

Attachments

1. Proposed Text Amendment
2. Exhibits- Uses
3. Public Notices

Recommended Motions

1. Motion to find the recommended Railroad Overlay text amendment as attached (or amended) as
being consistent with the 2035 Land Use Plan and reasonable and in the public interest.

2. Motion to recommend the Railroad Ovetlay text amendment as attached (or as amended) to the
Town Council.



2.3

ORDINANCE NO.

AN ORDINANCE AMENDING THE TEXT
OF THE TOWN OF WAYNESVILLE LAND DEVELOPMENT STANDARDS

WHERTEAS, the Town of Waynesville has the authority, pursuant to Article 7 of Chapter 160D
of the North Carolina General Statutes, to adopt land development regulations, clarify such regulations,
and may amend said regulations from time to time in the interest of the public health, safety, and welfare;
and

WHERFEAS, the Town of Waynesville Land Development Standards (LDS) will implement an
action item from the 2035 Comp Plan and create “a railroad overlay district to encourage redevelopment
along the railroad corridor, especially in areas with access to existing/future greenway;” and

WHEREAS, the Town of Waynesville reviewed the LDS “to create opportunities within the
Town of Waynesville’s industrial areas and along the railroad corridor,” as specified in the 2035 Comp
Plan; and

WHEREAS, the Town of Waynesvilie Planning Board has reviewed the proposed text
amendments to the LDS and recommends that they are consistent with the 2035 Comprehensive Plan and
that they are reasonable and in the public interest because:

® The Town of Waynesville will continue to “promote smart growth in land use planning
and zoning;” (Goal #1);
¢ The Town will Create Opportunities for a Sustainable Economy {Goal #5);

WHEREAS, the Planning Board has reviewed and recommends the proposed text amendments
for enactment by the Town Council; and

WHEREAS, the Town Council find this Ordinance to be consistent with the Town’s 2035
Comprehensive Plan and that it is reasonable and in the public interest to “make decisions about resources
and Iand use in accordance with North Carolina General Statutes.” and

WHEREAS, after notice duly given, a public hearing was held on July 17, 2023 at the regularly
scheduled meeting of the Waynesville Planning Board, and on at the regularly scheduled
meeting of the Waynesville Town Council,

NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT ORDAINED BY THE TOWN COUNCIL OF THE TOWN
OF WAYNESVILLE, MEETING IN REGULAR SESSION ON AND WITH A
MAJORITY OF THE BOARD MEMBERS VOTING IN THE AFFIRMATIVE, THE
FOLLOWING:

That the Land Development Standards be amended as follows (in red):



1. Amend Section 2.5.3 of the LDS as follows:

24

t2.5.3 Table of Permitted Uses (rev. 2012, 2016,2017, 2018, 2020, 2022, 2023):
For uses permitted in the Railroad Overlay District (RR-0), see Section 2.6 Overlay Districts of the LDS.

Rﬂidmﬁl'-l-m&ze!ﬁtv Distri R Dis:ﬁn: mmnm!it)‘ Neighborhood Residential (NR)

USE TYPES CC-BL | EN-RL. | FC-Rl, | HT-RL, | CP-RM | D-RM | HM.-RM |SW-RM| AC.NR| LL.-NR | MS5.NR | N-NR | PS_.NR | FC-NR | RC-NR
RESIDENTIAL
Dwelling-Singls Family P P P P P P P P P | o P P P P P
Dwelling-Two Family F P P P P P P P P P P P P P P
Dwelling-Townhams P P P P P P P P i P P P P P P
Dwelling = Cotmge P P P P P P P P P F P F P 4 &
Dowelling-Mukifamily s - = B r P - P P P P P P F s
Dwelling-Accessory Fs F3 FS 123 ] F3 FS Ps 2] FS L] Ps Fs s 7S
:;T::mc:\" Home: (8 or fewer Fs [ Fs s Fs Ps #s Ps Fs s #5 Fs FS B #5
Halfway Houses - - - - - - - - - - =
Ham= Occupstion Ps Ps 3 Fs 3 ] Fs ] Fs Fs Fs Fs Fs Ps Fs
Live-Waork Units - - - PL/PS - PLIPS - PLPS - PLPS - PLFS

2. Amend the LDS Section 2.6 Overlay Districts as follows:

2.6.3

Railroad Overlay District.

A. Purpose: The Railroad Overlay District (RR-O) is a zoning overlay district created with the
purpose of implementing the goals of the 2035 Comprehensive Land Use Plan to encourage
redevelopment along the railroad corridor and to create opportunities within the Town of
Waynesville’s industrial areas. The goal of the RR-O is to provide more zoning flexibility and
promote economic vibrancy of the underutilized areas along the rail tracks.

B. Development Standards: all development standards, including but not limited to density,
setbacks, height, etc., of the underlying district apply.

C. Permitted Uses:

All the uses allowed in the underlying districts remain exactly as they are noted in the Table of
Permitted Uses (See LDS 2.5.3).

In case of a conflict with the table below, the use as noted for the underlying district in LDS

2.5.3 will prevail (not necessarily the most restrictive).

Additional uses for RR-O are specified in the table below. If the use is not allowed in the
underlying district but is noted in the table below, then it is permitted in RR-O.

Permitted Uses allowed within the RR-O':

! P- Permitted, PS- Permitted subject to additional standards in Chapter 3, SUP- Special Use Permit
required (See Chapter 3 and 15).



Uses Railroad Overlay Districts (RR-O)
Dwelling-Single Family PS
Dwelling- Two Family
Dwelling- Townhome
Dwelling- Cottage
Dwelling-Multifamily B
Dwelling Accessory BS
Family Care Home (6 or fewer residents) PS
Halfway Houses PS
Home Occupation PS
Live-Work Units PS
Manufactured Home Parks SUP
Manufactured Housing PS
Residential Care Facilities (more than 6 B
residents)
Hotels/Motels
Personal Services g
Professional Services P
Event Space SUP
Neighborhood Commercial B
Neighborhood Restaurant P
Vehicle & Heavy Equipment Sales/Rental BS
Vehicle Services- Major Repair/Body Work PS
Amusements, Outdoor
Billiard/Pool Hall B
Freight Hauling/Truck Terminals SUP
Mini-Warehouses SUP
Storage- Warehouse, Indoor Storage P
Manufacturing, Light P
Produce Stands in Conjunction with Crop
Production
Wireless Communications Facility, Mini PS
Wireless Communications Facility, Macro PS
Monopole Wireless Communications Tower SUP

25



ADOPTED this Day of

, 2023.

ATTEST:

Candace Poolton, Town Clerk

APPROVED AS TO FORM:

Martha Bradley, Town Attorney

TOWN OF WAYNESVILLE

J. Gary Caldwell, Mayor



27

WAYNESVILLE

G A

Progress with Vision

To: Town of Waynesville Planning Board

From: Olga Grooman, Land Use Administrator

Date: July 17, 2023

Subject: Text Amendment Statement of Consistency

Description: Text amendment establishing the Railroad Overlay District and its uses, sections
2.5.3 and 2.6 of the Land Development Standards (LDS)

Address: Town of Waynesville Planning Department (“Development Services
Department™)

The Planning Board hereby adopts and recommends to the Town Council the following statement(s):

I:l The zoning text amendment is approved and is consistent with the Town’s Comprehensive
Land Use Plan because:

The zoning text amendment and is reasonable and in the public interest because:

D The zoning text amendment is rejected because it is inconsistent with the Town’s
Comprehensive Land Plan and is not reasonable and in the public interest because

D In addition to approving this zoning amendment, this approval is also deemed an amendment to
the Town’s Comprehensive Land Use Plan. The change in conditions taken into account in
amending the zoning ordinance to meet the development needs of the community and why this
action is reasonable and in the public interest, are as follows:

Planning Board Member , made a motion, seconded by

The motion passed . (unanimously or vote results here)

Susan Teas Smith, Planning Board Chair Date Esther Coulter, Administrative Assistant Date



Crypto Mining / Data Centers Information for Planning Board July 17, 2023

Since our Planning Board member, Jan Grossman, menticned cryptocurrency mining a few months back,
the Development Services staff have been doing some research. We have found that many neighboring
governments and local governments across the state have either defined “crypto mining /data centers,”
imposed a moratorium, or added related restrictions in their ordinances {noise, waste disposal, buffer
requirements, etc.). We have found some some articles describing how the neighboring jurisdictions
handled the issue, and you can access them via the links below. Although Waynesville did not have any
inguiries as of today, the Development Services staff seek the Planning Board’s guidance whether we want
to define the use and add its regulations proactively.

The research includes the following jurisdictions:

Haywood County
Jackson County
Fletcher
Henderson County
Buncombe County
Clay County
Cherokee County
Macon County
Maggie Valley

Vo NDWLAWNR

After you have a chance 1o look through the research, we will discuss the issue further and decide whether
we should proceed with It at the next Planning Board meeting on August 21, 2023.



29

Crypto Mining / Data Centers Research

1. CNN Video + Article “How the blare of a crypto mine woke up this Blue Ridge Mountain town:”
https://www.cnn.com/2023/01/19/us/north-carolina-crypto-mine-noise-weir-wxc/index.html

2. Cherokee County Crypto Mining Petition & Information:
https://www.sierraclub.org/north-carolina/wenoca/cherokee-county-cryptomining-petition

3. Haywood County: working on adding crypto mining in their High Impact Development Ordinance:
setbacks, buffers, screening, separation from schools, hospitals, retirement facilities, correctional
institutions, etc.
https://www.haywoodcountync.gov/DocumentCenter/View/4618/Chapter-160-High-Impact-

Development-

4. Minutes from the Henderson County Board of Commissioners meeting on May 1, 2023. See page 6
of the document. A 60-day moratorium imposed, additional regulations to follow:

e https://www.hendersoncountync.gov/sites/default/files/fileattachments/board of com
missioners/meeting/136471/5.1.2023 minutes.pdf

e https://www.hendersoncountync.gov/sites/default/files/fileattachments/planning board
/meeting/136698/4.20.23 plbd item -
text amendment for cryptocurrency mining.pdf

5. Buncombe County- Commissioners Approve Moratorium on Crypto Mining:

e https://www.buncombecounty.org/countycenter/news-
detail.aspx?id=20677#:~:text=The%20Buncombe%20County%20Board%200f,mining%20a
$%20a%20specific%20use

e https://www.buncombecounty.org/common/Commissioners/20230502/PH%200n%20Cr
ypt0%20Mining%20Temp%20Moratorium%20ordinance.pdf

e https://www.citizen-times.com/story/news/local/2023/05/04/buncombe-county-
approves-a-1-year-moratorium-on-cryptocurrency-mining/70179529007/

6. Jackson County: cryptocurrency mining is included in the Industrial Development Ordinance. See
page 3 of the document or read their Code of Ordinances online:

e https://www.jacksonnc.org/PDF/Agenda-2022/september-06/item-3a.pdf

e https://library.municode.com/nc/jackson county/codes/code of ordinances?nodeld=CD
ORD APXIUNDEOR ARTVIDEST S6.4INDE




7. Macon County addresses cryptocurrency mining:
https://smokymountainnews.com/news/item/35714-macon-will-address-cryptocurrency-mining
https://www.thefranklinpress.com/local-news-newsletter/planning-board-approves-crypto-mine-

regulations

8. Clay County prohibits crypto mining after the Cherokee County’s situation:
https://wlos.com/news/local/cryptocurrency-crypto-mines-mining-cherokee-county-murphy-
western-north-carolina-residents-concerns-loud-impacts-warn-neighboring-areas-counties-bans-
zoning-laws-rules-bitcoin-digital

9. Fletcher, NC: Planning Board defined the use on June 20, 2023, and as of now, it is not allowed.

10. Maggie Valley, NC- not addressed yet, but talked about it.




3

ZONING

JUNE 2022

AMERICAN PLANNING ASSOCIATICN

@ ISSUE NUMBER 6

PRACTICE DATA CENTERS

Bimpani




Zoning for Data Centers and
Cryptocurrency Mining

By David Morley, aicp

Dzta centers are the physical facillties where
the Internet lives. Fundamentally, they con-
sist of networked computer systems used
for data storage and processing, along with
supporting equipment, such as batteries,
back-up power generators, and cooling
devices. Modern data centers are the direct
descendants of the, so-called, telecom hotels
that hegan springing up in downtowns In the
late 1990s to accommodate the rapid expan-
sion of the commercial internet and, before
that, of automated telephene exchange
facilities that made it possible to place land-
line telephone calls across a city, the nation,
of the world (Evans-Cowley zoo2),

An emerging segment of the data center
market consists cf facilitles dedicated in
whole or part fo “mining” cryptocurrency.

A cryptocurrency is a decentralized digital
currency that uses encrypted data strings to
denote individual un'ts, or ceins, and a peer-
to-peer database known as a hlockchain to
maintain a secure ledger of transactions.
Several ef the most popular cryptocurren-
cles, most notably Bitcoin, require extremely
comgplex computatiens to verify each trans-
action and add a record, or block, for that
transaction to the blockchain, Whoever
verifies a transactlon first recelves a new
cryptocurrancy cain as a reward. While, theo-
retically, anyone with a computer server can
“mine” new ccins by helping to verify these
transactlons, large-scale cryptocurrency
mining reqguires a massive amaunt of com-
puting power.

This article explores the reasens why
clties, towns, and counties may wish to
define and regulate data centers and cryp-
tocurrency mining as distinct uses in their
zoning codes and provides a summary of
contemporary appreaches. It begins with
a brief overview of the factors that drive
demand for data centers ar cryptocurrency
mines in particular locatlons before examin-
ing the key planning issues that may merit
special attention through zoning and posing
a series of questions to guide code drafting.

)
a
o
o0
o
&
z
Z
5
2
L
o0
2
(=}
5
3
2
(v

s @ A h'yperscalé'Google data c'e_nter in Co'uncil_ Bluffs, 'Iowa,

The article concludes with short profiles of
local zoning approaches that may serve as
models for ethers.

DEMAND DRIVERS

Industry analysts predict sustained growth
in data center construction in the coming
years (Dunbarand Banar 2021), This includes
demand fer larger and larger *hyperscale”
data centers as well as more widely distrib-
uted “edge” data centers (Sowry et al, 2018).
Data center developers (or operators) are
attracted to sites with low latency to end
users and dependable and affordable elec-
tricity.

While data centers have historically
been clustered around majorinternet access
points, information techneology companies,
and government employment centers, the
proliferation of cloud computing and the
internet of things is pushing demand out
to network edges, This means mere data
centers in smaller metropolltan and nonmet-
ropolltan areas.

Big technology companies are likely to
continue looking for sites that can accomma-
date new, large single-story structures. But

operators that specialize in leasing space in
the same facility to multiple companies (l.e.,
collocated data centers) may be more open
to infill sites and existing structures, espe-
cially 'f those sites have access to fiber optic
infrastructure.

Data centers use a let of electricity
(s2e below) to power processing and stor-
age hardware and to keep that hardware
cool, The amount of electricity (and often
water) needed for cooling is higher In warm,
humid climates than in cool, dry areas.
Consequently, holding other factors equal,
davelopers favor lecations with low electric-
Ity rates and cocler climates, Furthermore,
because these facilities operate continu-
ously, developers are also locking for sites
that are less vulnerable to natural hazards.

Cryptacurrency miners are also look-
ing for locations with cheap electricity and
low hazard risk; however, dedicated mining
facilitles are not concerned about proxim-
ity to customers and are less likely to invest
in backup power. While there seems to be
awidespread consensus that data centers
are essential to global communications and
the global economy, cryptocurrency miners

ZONINGPRACTICE 6.22
AMERICAN PLANNING ASSOCIATION | page 2



have a more limited “social license” to aper-
ate, Widespread concerns about the energy
use of mines and the limited utility of the
coins they preduce has led some countries,
including China, to ban Bitcoin mining, Con-
sequently, many cryptocurrency miners are
relocating to the U.S. (Obanda 2022).

PLANNING ISSUES

From the extericr, data centers and crypto-
currency mining facilities may be physically
Indistinguishable from many commercial

or ltght industrial uses. However, the
operational characteristics of these facili-
ties are typically guite distinct from those

of surrounding land uses. From a planning
perspective, the most noteworthy character-
istics relate to their electricity and watar use,
nolse production, enhanced safety and secu-
rity needs, and low employment densities.

They Use a Lot of Electricity (and Water)

In 2020, data centers used between 200
and 250 terawatt hours (TWh) of electricity,
accounting for approximately one percent
of global consumption (IEA 2021). While
the total consumption has grown steadily
along with global power demand, this ratio
has held relatively constant over the past
20 years as efficlency Improvements have
proportionally offset increased demand
from data centers. However, this pattern

is unlikely to hold as growth in streaming
video, online gaming, cloud computing,
machine learning, virtual reality, and the
internet of things begins to outstrip effi-
ciency Improvements.

The figures above exclude cryptocur-
rency mining. Bitcoin miners alone used an
estimated additional 60 to 70 TWh in 2020,
According to Cambridge University, if Bitcoin
was country, it's annual electricity consump-
tion would be slightly higher than that of
Poland or Malaysia (2022).

Data center and cryptocurrency mining
equipment also generates a fremendous
amount of waste heat, which must be dis-
sipated by fans orabsorbed by a cooling
medium to avoid hardware damage and
ensure efficient operations. Many data cen-
ters and cryptocurrency mines use water as
a cooling medium. Water is also necessary
for most ferms of electricity production, In
aggregate, a medium-sized data center typi-
cally uses more water each year than twe
18-hole golf courses (Mytton 2021).

They Can Be Noisy

Inside a data center or cryptocurrency mine
server rcom, the nolse can make it diffficult to
carry on a conversation at a normal volume,
While most data centers and large crypto-
currency mines incorporate construction
and secundproofing technigues that ensure
this server nolse isn't zudible outside of

the building, alr conditioner compresscrs
mounted on the roof or on ground nearthese
facilities can generate noise that carries
across property lines.

In some contexts, vegetation or other
structures may rapidly attenuate this
sound. In others, the sound may travel over
long distances. Qbviously, the degree to
which these sounds constitute nuisance
“noise” depends on surrounding land uses
and amblent noise levels, The problem s
typically most acute when data centers or
mines are near resldences.

They Have Enhanced Safety and Security Needs
Data centers typically aim to run con-
tinuously, and any outage or dewntime can
threaten business operations. Furthermore,
data cenfers house expensive, highly
specialized hardware, and many handle
sensitive data. Consequently, most data
centers Incorporate enhanced safety and
sacurity features, such as gated access
points, fencing, or bright lighting, te prevent
unauthorized access and to minimize the
likelihood of disruption.

Cryptocurrency mines have similar
safety and security needs, with twa key
distinctions. First, miners want to maintain
network access, but the stakes are lower

33

than for data centers hecause an outage
wouldn't nagatively affect any other services
orusers, Second, cryptecurrency mines gen-
erally aren’t receiving any clients and have
little incentive to draw attention to them-
selves with fencing or lighting.

They Have a Low Employment Density

Data centers typically have far fewer workers
per square foot than professlonzl offices or
light industrizl facilit'es (Tarczynska 2016),
And cryptecurrency mines generally have
aven lower employment densities than data
centers. For some communities, data centers
(and potentially cryptocurrency mines) are
highly des'rable from an economic devel-
opment perspective because they often
generate alarge property tax surplus that
can subsidize more service-intensive land
uses, such as single-family homes. Others,
however, are reluctant to devote too much
commercial or light industrial space to uses
that generate few jobs.

ZOMING CONSIDERATIONS

Any community interested in regulating data
centers and cryptocurrency mining through
zoning should consider three key questions:

1. Dothese uses need new use definftions?
2. Where should these uses be permitted?

3. Dothese uses need special development
or performance standards?

Do They Need New Use Definitions?

New land uses don't necessarily require new
use definitlons in the local zoning cade. It
depends, in part, on whether the use fits

e
I
o
=
&
7
o
[
o
1=
-]
o
d
-
<z
£
&
a
©

" The roof ufe_B'a_\,_r"s To pai data center In South Jordan, Utah.

ZONINGPRACTICE 6.22
AMERICAN PLANNING ASSOCIATION | page 3



neatly under a broaderuse category orls
substantially like ancther defined use, And
it depends on whethertreating the new use
the same as this use category or other simi-
laruse would be likely to generate negative
effects on nearby properties or the commu-
nity as a whole,

Many communities have defined data
centers (or some ¢losely analogous term) as
a distinct use in their zoning codes. These
definitions typically reference the general
function of the facility and the degree to
which it is occupied by computer systems
and related equipment. For example, Anne
Arundel County, Maryland, defines data stor-
age center as “a facility used primarily for
the storage, management, processing, and
transmission of digltal data, which houses
computer or network equipment, systems,
servers, appliances, and other asscciated
components related to digitat data storage
and operations” (§18-1-101.(44).

Comparatively fewer communities have
defined cryptocurrency mining as a distinct
use, Many of these definitions focus en the
specialized purpose of the facility, often with
references to other newly defined terms,
such as high density load or server farm,
that clarify its distinct characteristics. For
example, Moses Lake, Washington, specifies
that cryptocurrency mining often uses more
than 250 kilowatt-hours per square foot each
year (§18.03.040).

Wherte Should They Be Permitted?
Communities that choose to regulate data
centers or cryplocurrency mines as dlstinct
uses may permit these uses either by right
orwith a discretionary use permit (i.e.,
conditional, special, or special exception
use permits) in ene or more existing base or
overlay zoning districts. Alternatively, they
may elect to establish a new special-purpose
hase or overlay zoning district for either use.

Many communities permit data centers
and cryptocurrency mines either by right
arwith a discreticnary use permit in com-
mercial and industrial districts. While data
centers and mines can fitin a wide range of
existing commercial or industrial buildings,
purpose-bullt facilities are often single-story
structures with large floorplates.

Given that they generally have few
employees and visitors, these uses may
not be appropriate in ground-floor street-
frontage spaces in pedestrian-oriented

EXAMPLES OF DEFINED USES

34

Jurisdiction Defined Uses

Alpharetta, GA

Data center (§1.4.2)

Anne Arundel County, MD

Data storage center (§18-1-101.(44))

Fairfax County, YA

Data center (§9103]

Frederick County, MD

Critical digital infrastructure facility (§1-19-11.100}

Moses Lake, WA
{818.03.040)

Cryptocurrency mining; Data center/server farm/cluster

Pitt County, NC

Data processing facility (large scale) (§15)

Plattsburgh, NY

Commercial cryptocurrency mining; Server farm; High

density load service (LL 6-2018)

Prince George’s County, MD

Qualified data center (§27-2500)

Prince William County, VA

Data center (§32-100)

Somerville, MA

Data center (§9.8.b)

Vernal, UT

Data center {(§16.04.173)

Wenatchee, WA

Cryptocurrency mining; Data center (§10.08)

commercial areas, Wenatchee, Washington,
addresses this issue by permitting data
centers and cryptocurrency mines by right
fn muktiple pedestrian-oriented commearcial
districts, with a simple stipulation that they
cannot occupy “grade level commercial
street frontage” (§10,10,020).

A new special-purpose zoning district
can help steer data centers or cryptocurrency
mines toward corridors or other subareas
that have suitahle utility infrastructure,
When adopted as floating zones, special
districts can also provide an extra laver of
review for large projects that may cover doz-
ens ot hundreds of acres.

Prince William County, Virginia, added
a Data Center Opportunity Zone Overlay Dis-
trict to its zoning code in 2016 (§32-509), The
county has mapped this overlay to more than
70 percent of its industrially zoned land. The
overlay permits data centers and includes
design standards for these facilitias; however,
it does not otherwise madify the existing use
permissiens for underlying districts.

Do They Need Speciat Development or
Performance Standards?

Communities that degide to regulate data
centers or cryptocurrency mines as distinct
uses may choose to adopt use-specific
standards that modify or supplement other
relevant universal or district-specific devel-
opment or performance standards, This
approach can help communities target stan-
dards to the distinct features of these uses

to address specific community concerns.

Use-specific standards can help mini-
mize reliance on discretionary approvals and
improve the consistency of local decisions.
Without these standards, local officlals may
be more likely to require all data centers and
cryptacurrency mines to abtain a discretion-
ary use permit, and they may be more likely
to adopt wildly varying conditions of approval
for substantially similar proposals.

Communities that have adopted use-
specific standards for data centers and
cryptocurrency mines often establish building
design and buffering or screening require-
ments to minimize the vistkility or improve
the appearance of these facilities from public
streets or nearby properties. Othercommon
standards address environmental perfor-
mance, including noise and light pollution,
and evidence of electric utility approval,

POTENTIAL MODEL APPROACHES

[t would be difficult to find a community with
mare experience with data centers than
Loudon Ceunty, Virginia. And the county’s
approach to zoning for data centers serves as
a potential model for other communities with
suitable sites and sufficient infrastructure te
accommodate data center development. In
contrast, Missoula County, Montana, was ong
ofthe first local jurisdictions to craft zoning
regulations for cryptocurrency mining opera-
tions, And its emphasis on mitigating the
potential climate impacts represents a differ-
ent type of potential model.

ZONINGPRACTICE 6.22
AMERICAN PLANNING ASSOCIATION | page 4



Loudon County, Virginia

Northern Virginia's Data Center Alley, pri-
marfly clustered around Routes 7 and 267

in Loudon and FaTrfax Counties is the larg-
est data center market In the world (Fray

and Keutsaris 2022). Its combined power
consumption capacity is more than 1.6 giga-
walts (GW), nearly twice as much as the next
largest market. And within Data Center Allay,
Loudon County has the highest concentra-
tion of data centers. As of October 2021,
data centers cccupied more than 25 milllon
square feet, with another 4 million square
feet in development (LCDED zo022),

Several important factors have driven
demand for data center developmentin
Loudon County. It is home to the Equinix
internet exchange, one of the largestinfernat
access points in the world and a successor to
Metrapolitan Area Exchange, East, the first

U.S. exchange. The county has abundant
(and redundant) fiber optic infrastructure,
relatively cheap power, and sufficlent water.
Additionally, It has a high concentration of
skilled technology workers and businesses
that support the data centerindustry.

By the year zoco, there was already
an emerging data center clusterin Loudon
County. However, the county did not define
and regulate data centers as a distinct use
in its zoning code until 2014 (ZOAM 2013-
0003}, According to Acting Planning & Zening
Director James David, prior to this, the county
defined data centers as commerclal cffices.

The latest version of the county’s
zoning ordinance permlts data centers by
right in Planned Office Park, Research and
Development Park, Industrial Park, and
General Industrial districts and as a special
exception use in Commercial Light Industry

3¢

districts. New data centers (without vasted
rights) must comply with a set of use-specific
standards governing fagade design, screen-
ing of mechanical equipment, exterior
lighting, pedestrian and bicycle facilities,
and landscaping, buffering, and screening
(§5-664).

According to Davld, these standards
are intended to improve the aesthetics of
data centers, minimize visibility from nearby
residential areas, and ensure continuous
sidewalk and trail networks. Qverall, they
represent a light-touch approach that has,
so far, worked well for a county with enor-
mous demand fer data centers and relatively
modest competition for space from other
commercial and industrial uses,

However, in February 2022, county
officials directed staff to research regulatory
options to prevent new data centers in the

EXAMPLES OF USE-SPECIFIC STANDARDS FOR DATA CENTERS AND CRYPTOCURRENCY MINING

Jurisdiction

Use-Specific Standards

Alpharetta, GA

Requires evidence of compliance with noise standards; specifies exterior lighting fixture design; establishes

minimum building height; requires building fagade design elements; establishes other fencing, screening, and
landscaping requirements to minimize visibility from adjacent roads and properties {§2.7.2.1)

Anne Arundet County, MD

storage (§18-10-119)

Establishes minimum lot size and setbacks; prohibits residences on the same lot; establishes limit on outdoor

Fairfax Caunty, YA
{84102.6.A)

Reguires all equipment to be enclosed within a building; establishes maximum floor area by zoning district

Frederick County, MD

Establishes criteria for reducing sethacks; speclfies building design standards; specifies landscaping,

screening, and buffering requirements; clarifies parking, loading, signage, and lighting standards; estahlishes
criteria for private roads; establishes noise and vibration standards (§1-19-8.402)

Moses Lake, WA

Clarifies review process for business license; prohibits container storage; requires evidence of electrical

utility approval; requires evidence of electrical permit and inspection; establishes environmental performance
standards, addressing noise, heat, and electric and magnetic fields; limits amount of exposed equipment on

facades (§18.74)

Pitt County, NC

Limits height: requires separation from sensitive uses; requires noise study and compliance with noise

standards; requires underground wirlng; requires security fencing and vegetative screening; requires evidence
of electrical utility approval; clarifies signage standards; requires notification of abandonrment (§8{UUULY

Plattsburgh, NY

Requires fire suppression and mitigation technigues; limits Internal ambient temperature and the direct

release of heat on colder days; establishes permissibie noise levels (LL 6-2018)

Prince George’s County, VA

Requires building fagade design elements; specifies exterior lighting fixture design; requires screening for

security fencing and limits fence height; reguires compliance with landscape manual; clarifies applicable off-
street parking standard; clarifies signage standards; requires an acoustical study; specifies additicnal site,
locational, and noticing requirements for facilities in rural residential districts (§27-5102{e)(4) (BY)

Somerville, MA

Establishes special review criteria related to aesthetic impacts and employment opportunities {§9.8.b)

Vernal, UT

near residential zones or existing hotels or motels {§16.20.250)

Requires fencing and structural screening for electrical generators; requires noise mitigation plan for facitities

Wenatchee, WA

Clarifies review process for business license; prohibits container storage; requires evidence of electrical utility

approval; requires evidence of electrical permit and inspection; clarifies blank wall limitation standards;

requires an affidavit verifying operating sound levels (§18.48.310)

ZONINGPRACTICE 6.22
AMERICAN PLANNING ASSOCIATION | page 5



Route 7 corr’dor. While data center demand
remains high in this area, the county’s
comprehensive plan designates most of
this corridor as Suburban Mixed Use, which
envisions a compact, pedestrian-friendly
mix of commercial, residential, cultural, and
recreational uses, Furthermere, the existing
alectricity network infrastructure is insuf-
ficlent to accommodate the existing demand
for new data centers (LCDED 2022),

The county is working cn its first com-
plete overhaul of its zoning code since 1993,
And it intends to incorporate any new regu-
lations for data centers inte the new code,
which officials hope te adopt by the end
of 2022.

Missoula County, Montana

In April 2019, Missoula County, Montana,
adopted an inter!m zoning resclution that
established a cryptocurrency mining overlay
{Resolution No, 2019-026), The county had
one large cryptocurrency mine already, and
its low electricity rates and cool climate
made it an attractive area for prospective
miners, While a few other jurisdictions had
already defined cryptocurrency mining in
their zoning codes, Missoula County appears
to be the first to explicitly position Its zoning
approach as a response to climate change.

According fo county plannerennie
Dixon, alcp, local officials originally took an
interestin regulating cryptocurrency mining
as a distinct use after multiple complaints of
noise from cocling fans at an exIsting Bitcoin
mine eperating out of a fermer sawmill in
unincorporated Bonner. Soan, though, the
county expanded its focus to Include energy
consumption and electronic waste.

Montana law only authorizes interim
zoning in the case of an emergency involving
“public health, safsty, morals, or general
welfare” (§76-2-206). Dixon says the Inter-
governmental Panel on Climate Change’s
2018 Special Report on Global Warming of
1,5° C helped justify climate change as a
loczl emergency that warranted interim zon-
ing to mitigate greenhouse gas emissions
(and other potential environmental impacts}
from cryptocurrency mining.

The interim zoning regulations defined
cryptocurrency mining as a distinct use and
created a Cryptocurrency Mining Overlay
Zonhe, mapped to the entire unincorporated
geographic extent of the county {which
includes some un-zoned areas). The overlay

R 11 BT

o

2c

Google Earth

@  The heart of Northern Virginia's Data Center Alley in Aéhhdrn, Virginia.

o
=
o
w
)
=
&
o
]

(O] The:former Bonner sawmilt in Missotila County, Monfana, Was ance
home to the HyperBlock c'ryp_tocurrenty mine.

restricted cryptocurrency mining cpera-
tiens to industrial districts and required
operators to obtain a discretionary use per-
mitif the mine was adjacent to a residentlal
district or within soc feet of a residential
property boundary, These regulations

also required all mining operations to
verify that all electronic waste be handled
by alicensed recycling firm and that all
electricity use be offset by new renewable
energy production.

Caroline Lauer, the county’s Sustain-
akility Program Manager, stresses ihe
importance of this last requirement. If
cryptocurrency miners purchased existing
supplies of renewable energy, it could actu-
ally displace existing utility customers to
dirtier sources, While most of the county’s

electricity comes from hydropower, coal
accounts for much of the remainder.
Missoula County's 2016 Growth Policy
plan includes an objective to “reduce the
county's contributton to climate change”
(4.1) and lists palicies that promote alterna-
tive energy development (4.1.3) and reduce
energy use and waste generation as imple-
mentation actions {4.1.6). A day before it
adopted the interim cryptocurrency mining
regulations, the county further strengthened
its policy ratlonale by adopting a joint cam-
mitment with the City of Misscula to achieve
100 percent clean electricity use by 2030,
County officials extended the Interim
zoning foranotheryearin 2020 before adopi-
ing the same regulations as a permanent
zoning amendment in March 2021 (§1.04

ZONINGPRACTICE 6.22
AMERICAN PLANNING ASSOCIATION| prge 6



& §5.05). According to Dixon, the Bonner
mine ceased cperations during the interim
zoning period, but not because of the
county’s zoning. It declared bankruptey
two days after the “Black Thursday™ Bitcoin
crash in March 2020, leaving the tribal-
owned independent power producer that
provided Its electricity with a $3.7 million
unpaid bill (Rozen 2020),

CONCLUSIONS

The rapid rise in data center developmant
has coincided with dramatic decreases in
the cests of preducing solar and wind power,
This, in combination with a growing trend
toward clean power commitments among
technology companies, has blunted some of

REFERENCES AND RESOURCES
" Dunbar, Courtney and Robert Bonar.
v oz021, “Siting Ne_xt-_Génerétidn Data
Centers.” Area Development, Q2. .

| bitdv/300dyl3 .

. _EVans-CoWley,Jennifer. 206;. Telecont
: -Hotels: A Planners Guide, PAS Report
No. 505. Chicago: American Planning

Ass_ociation.-_bﬁ,_lx[jgl}_e.,;g_g

. Fray, Andrew and Bobby I(ou'tsar_is.
" - 2022, 2022 Global Data Center Market
¢ Comparison. Chicage: Cushman &

* Wakefield. cushwk.co/3P8IOdB

* Gomez, Alexsandrd and Joseph - . .
i DeAngélié_. 2022, Digitalization and

. lmplications for Planning. Chicago:

) _A'me'rican Planning Assaciation.

© bit.ly/akUPIT -

- International Energy Agency (IEA). 2021,
““Data Centres and Data Transmission
-+ Networks.” Tracking Report, November.
" bitly/aFsMSWR - K '
" Loudon County [Virginla] Department of
" Ecanomic Development (LDED). 2022. -

Loudon County Data Cenfer Land Study. -

bit.ly/1P7DYEE -~ -

' Missdula (Montana), Colnty of, 2021,

- “Cryptocurrency Mining,” bit. lv/4PbSt72

the climate impacts of an Increased demand
for data storage and processing.

The increased digitalization of life
virtually guarantees that data centers will
continue proliferating In strategic locations
across the country {Gomez and DeAngelis
2022), Seon, communities may start seging a
sharp ncrease in interest in very small edge
data centers that could fit in underutilized
commercial spaces or even be collocated
with other telecommunications infrastruc-
ture, such as small cell facilities, in public
rights-of-way (Sowry et al. 2018),

The future of cryptocurrency mining
facilities is less certain, Bitcofn and cther
energy-intensive cryptocurrencies are fac-
ing social pressure to transition to mors

: Myt_ton. David. 2021. ‘fData'Centré Water '
" Consumption,” NPf Clean Water, 4(13).,

bit. ly/awiRtiaR P :

Obanda, Sebastian. 202 2. '

- “Cryptocurrency Bans Fuel US Data

Center Construction.” Construction Dive,

Februaty 16. bit,Jv/awzaGet

Rozen, Jacob. 2030. “Poar Business
Maodel, Not COVID-1g.Behind Hyperhlock
Ear_ly Struggles.” Coingeek, December

23. hit.ly/37uFHYp -

Tarczynska, Kasia. 2016. Money Lest to
the Cloud: How Data Centers Benefit From
State and Local Government Subsidies.
Wash'ington, D.C,: Good Jobs First.

hit,ly/398mn3m -

Sowry, David, Jani Dharmesh, Don .
Duet, Frank Yan, Harry Smeenk,

- james Yoiing, Phillip Marangelta, and
Robert Bunger. 2018. A Position

Paper: Edge Data Centers. Arlington,
Virginia: Telecommunications Industry

Association, bit.ty/aN3lie8Y

- University of Cambridge. 2022,

“Cambtidge Bitcoin Electricity
Censumption Index.” bit.ly/38hjiv1

27

energy-efficient transaction verification
methods, and several existing eryptocurren-
cies already use these methods. However,
we are siill at the very beginning of the cryp-
tocurrency story, While this form of currency
currently exists primarily as a speculative
investment vehicle, this could change rapidly
ifvaluations stabilize and large numbers of
goods and service providers accept crypto-
currencies for payment.

Not every community will see the value
in defining data centers or cryptocurrency
mines as distinct uses in their zoning codes.
Nevertheless, doing so can give local juris-
dictions a leg up when it comes to signaling
preferences to developers and operators
and minimizing or mitigating potential
adverse impacts.

ABQUTTHE AUTHOR

David Morley, Aicp, is a research program
and QA manager with the American Planning
Asscciation and editer of Zening Practice.

Cover: iStock.com/gorodenkoff

VOL.39,NOD, 6

The American Planning Assoctation will lead
the way to equitable, thriving communities by
creating unigue Insights, as well as innovative
and practicat approaches that enabla the
planning community to anrtlcipate and
successfully adapt to the needs of a rapidily
changing world.

Zoning Practice {ISSN 1548-0135) isa

monthly publication of the American Planning
Association, Joel Albizo, FASAE, cak, Chief
Exacutive Qfficer; Petra Hurtado, PHD, Research
Director; David Morley, aice, Editor.

Subscriptions are available for $95 (U.5.)
and $1zo {fareign), Missing and damaged
print issues: Contact APA Customer Service
{312-431-9100) within go days of the
publication date.

©z2o22 by the American Planning Association,
205 N, Michigan Ave., Suite 1200, Chicago, IL
60602-5927; planning.org.

Allrights reserved. No part of this puklication
may e reproduced or utilized in any Form or
by any means without permission in writing
from APA,

Printed on recycled paper, including 50-70%
recycled fiber and 10% postconsumer waste.

ZONINGPRACTICE 6,22
AMERICAN PLANNING ASSOCIATION |page 7



¥

£z65-10909 7] ‘05e2UYD
00ZT 3UNg
*3AY ueSIYNW N Soz

NOIIVID0SSY ONINNY 1d NYDRZWY

A3113Vdd DONINOZ

Y 40§ SSIUNLUILLIOY 16240) Buiba)

uoneossy buiuue|d ueduswy

VdV

HOW DOES YOUR ZONING

S5 AND

T

pm ey

EAT DATA CENTE

CRYPTOCH

f)()

NCY MINES:

1
|

A

| e e

-l



